LYNDON CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF
June 7, 2021

The Lyndon City Council met in regular session on Monday, June 7, 2021 at 7:00 p.m., at
Lyndon City Hall.

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Steve Morrison called the meeting to order.

a) ROLL CALL: City Clerk called roll of the City Council. Mayor Steve Morrison,
Council President Darin Schmitt and members, Kevin Heit, Eric Ramey and Lynn
Atchison were present. Katie Shepard was absent with notification.

City Staff present: Julie Stutzman, City Clerk; Scott Culley, Maintenance Supervisor;
and David Forkenbrock, Chief of Police.

Others Present: Bob Hamilton, Kansas Department of Transportation, Brett Lewis,
Levi Garber, Sharon Hanna, Zacharia Hanna and Gene Hirt.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING:

a) Schmitt made the motion to approve the regular meeting minutes of
May 17, 2021 as amended. Atchison seconded; motion carried.

3. CONSENT AGENDA:

a) Approval of Bills: Atchison made the motion to approve the bills as set forth.
Schmitt seconded; motion carried.

4. CORRESPONDENCE TO COUNCIL:

e May 2021 Edition of the Kansas Government Journal

e Copy of a letter from LUMC Car Show Coordinator requesting items be done at the City
Park before the show.

e Copy of a letter from Charlie Schwindamamn with KRWA in regards to Wastewater
Lagoon Operations meeting with the Maintenance Supervisor.

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

a) BOB HAMILTON, KDOT - LYNDON PD PARTICIPATION IN KDOT PROGRAM:
Bob Hamilton who is the Law Enforcement Liaison with KDOT awarded the
Lyndon Police Department with a new Stalker Radar. The Police Department
participated in the Safe Seatbelts for Everyone Campaign for enforcement around
high schools and in the city. Mr. Hamilton stated 92 agencies with 358 officers
participated in the campaign in which 2,434 tickets were issued in one week around
schools. Citations issued were 135 teen seatbelt, 39 child restraint, 578 adult
seatbelt, 713 speeding, and 916 other citations. Participating agencies are entered
into a drawing which include a radar, PBT, camera and flare set. The Lyndon
Police Department was chosen to receive the Stalker Radar and was presented to
Chief Forkenbrock. It was noted retail for the radar is approximately $3,000 to



Regular Council Minutes of June 7, 2021

Page 2

$3,500 and is the same radar used by the Kansas Highway Patrol. The Council
thanked Mr. Hamilton for attending the meeting and for awarding the department
with the radar.

JONES PARK TENNIS COURTS: Mayor Morrison stated when he walked Jones
Park with USD 421 and Lyndon Rec representatives to discuss the Jones Park Use
Agreement and future improvements, the resurfacing of the tennis courts was
noted. The Mayor contacted Mac McConnell & Associates and was provided a
quote in the amount of $21,593.00 for repair and resurfacing the tennis court and
$10,350.00 for installation of a pickleball net and basketball goal. Ramey noted
there is no guarantee on the crack filling, was concerned about the cost and
inquired about of how often the court is used. Mayor Morrison asked about
maintenance of the courts and it was noted it has not been resurfaced in quite a
while. Mayor Morrison stated he asked for a breakdown of the costs and the crack
repair is $7,200 and the resurfacing is the remainder of the cost with the first coat
being $8,000 and the second coat with colorant is $6,300. It was noted that it should
possibly be included in the 2022 budget. After further discussion, Council tabled
the matter.

Resident Levi Garber asked the Mayor and Council if they would consider letting
Lyndon’s citizens do the work to rehabilitate the tennis court with the city buying
the materials. Mayor Morrison asked him if he had done any of this kind of
concrete repair work to which Mr. Garber said he has. He then asked Mr. Garber if
this was something he would be willing to provide costs for and Mr. Garber stated
he would go look at it, get a list of materials with cost estimates, and then the
Council could decide if the project is viable. Mr. Garber stated he would provide
the labor for the project at no charge. After further discussion, Mr. Garber will
proceed with inspection of the tennis courts and work up the cost estimates for
materials. Mayor Morrison will meet Mr. Garber at the tennis courts on June 21st at
8 a.m. to discuss the project.

Mayor Morrison also stated he would speak with the USD 421 regarding the
project.

M. Hirt stated he donated funds to the school to help with the installation of dust
control on East 6th Street where the black top ends to city limits. He stated this was
to help control the dust issue during football games and also during pool and
baseball season. Mayor Morrison stated it would be a nice improvement and was
thanked for his generosity.

AMERICAN RESCUE PLANT ACT (ARPA) FUNDS: The City Clerk stated she
believed the ARPA funds were received in the amount of $188,000. She didn’t



Regular Council Minutes of June 7, 2021
Page 3

think that the funds were supposed to be in until the end of the year and the use of
those funds were briefly discussed. She stated the funds are limited to water and
sewer infrastructure and broadband. The City Clerk also noted that during a
webinar infrastructure uses were more detailed and the funds could be used to
paint the water tower and reduce the amount of funding coming from .5% and the
Water Fund for use in other projects.

The City Clerk stated she has called the auditor Mike Peroo to discuss this funding.

d) PORTABLE BATHROOMS AT JONES PARK: Mayor Morrison stated the cost to
rent one ADA porta-potty for Jones Park came in higher than the allowed $500
spending limit. The City Clerk stated Gerken Rental was $300 per month and
would cost the city $1,500 and A1 Rental was $209 per month with a cost of $1,030.
This would be the cost to have an ADA porta-potty at Jones Park from June 8 to
October 1.

Discussion continued in regards to options or possible issue for granting access to
the bathrooms during practices. It was consensus of the Council to check out keys
to the coaches that are to be returned at the end of the season. If the keys are not
returned, there will a $5 charge for replacement. The Maintenance Supervisor will
get new locks and have non-duplicated keys made for the bathrooms at Jones Park
with the expense to do so not to exceed $500.

6. NEW BUSINESS:

a) REPAIR OF KUBOTA TRACTOR: The Council received a quote from McConnell
Machinery for replacement of the damaged glass door on the Kubota Tractor in the
amount of $641.74. Ramey made the motion to approve the expense. Heit
seconded; motion carried.

Atchison stated that he had spoken to his contact in regards to obtaining shipping
containers for storage and was told they deal with JB Hunt. Atchison stated he then
contacted JB Hunt and currently they do not any containers available at this point
and took Atchison’s contact information. Atchison stated that JB Hunt only deals
with containers that are 53 feet which would be ample for storage of the items
currently in the old barn. He stated the price for the container is unbelievable at
only approximately $750.00 and his contact Marvin Vail who owns Marvin’s Tow
would deliver the container for $250 with a total cost of $1,000 for new storage.
Atchison stated he went and measured the potential location at the shop and a 55-
foot container would fit well.

Atchison stated the city would need to put siding on the container as he has seen
several of these in town and the city would set the precedence for others to follow.
Ramey stated the City of Ottawa requires the storage containers at his place of
employment to be painted annually regardless if they needed it or not.



Regular Council Minutes of June 7, 2021
Page 4

Garber stated this particular idea of storage containers was discussed at the
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting earlier this evening and the regulations
that would be required by residents to place them on their properties. The Zoning
Administration was not able to attend and this question would be posed to him to
be researched.

b) APPOINTMENT OF MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE: The City Clerk stated that
Judge Lori Breshears who is the newly-appointed judge at the County is willing to
take on the duties of being the Municipal Court Judge for Lyndon. Morrison stated
he would like to appoint Judge Breshears as the Municipal Court Judge. Ramey
made the motion to approve Mayor Morrison’s appointment. Schmitt seconded;
motion carried.

a) CONNECTING LINKS AGREEEMENT WITH OSAGE COUNTY:  The City Clerk
provided Council with a copy of the connecting links agreement received from the
County Commissioners dated June 1, 2021. In Lyndon the connecting link is East
and West 6% Street. The agreement allows the city to opt out and take over
maintenance of the street with the County contributing $582.00. It was noted that
historically the city has never signed the agreement. Heit made the motion to not
enter into the proposed agreement. Schmitt seconded; motion carried. The City
Clerk will return the unsigned agreement and a letter to the County Commissioners
with an answer.

7. STAFF REPORTS:

a) CITY CLERK: Council received a copy of the Clerk’s report for June 7, 2021.

Per Wes Weishaar there are no pay applications due for approval at this time due to
delay in work due to the rain and so no Jackson Street Project update this time.

The city paid $900 total for the 13 flower pots down town. Osage Garden and
Produce did a great job and Maintenance is going to start watering the flowers twice
a week with a tank in the truck to ensure that no plants are being neglected. The
office staff will fertilize the plants every couple of weeks.

Contacted Mike Peroo and discussed the 2022 budget. The mill levy funds are on
hold until we receive the Osage County Clerk’s information on or before June 15t
and we will then really get to work on levy funds. Discussed setting a meeting with
Mr. Peroo and the Mayor starting out regarding the city setting a 5-year plan and
working future budgets to meet those plans in conjunction with the 2022 budget
work. We will be meeting on Tuesday, June 22 at 1 pm.

Provided an up-to-date cost as of 6/4/2021 on the 6t Street sidewalk/curb and
gutter work. The remaining budget is $35,302.00 and was given to the Maintenance
Supervisor so that he knows where the budget sits and can visit with Blake. Not all
of 6th Street has been poured (some end sidewalk approaches) and Jefferson Street
has not been started.



Regular Council Minutes of June 7, 2021

Page 5

Mr. Hirt asked about the schedule of repair for the streets around the school since
the sewer project is completed and the Mayor stated the budget for planned streets
would need to be reviewed and those streets would need to a be part of the 5-year
plan. It was noted that the Cedar from 6t to 4t as well as from 4th to Ash Street were
done in 2019. Atchison asked which streets in particular and Mr. Hirt stated around
the high school.

PUBLIC WORKS: Council received a copy of the Maintenance activity report from
May 17 to June 7, 2021.

Mayor Morrison stated at the City Park there is a swing on the swing set in need of
attention and the Maintenance Supervisor stated the issue has been fixed and also
looked into the mulch situation. The Maintenance Supervisor stated that rubber
mats for the parks needs to be put in the 2022 budget as well as mulch and pea
gravel.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated he did read the letter from the car show
coordinator and some of those issues are already in the process of being corrected.
Mayor Morrison also asked if the drainage issue has been corrected and the
Maintenance Supervisor stated there has been a drainage issue on the west side of
the shelter house for years and that area does hold water. He also stated there has
been a small ditch dug to aid in moving the water away from the shelter house and
the installation of drainage tile as well as a 5 or 6-foot area of gravel in that location
is probably warranted. Ramey asked what the cost of installing the drainage tile
would be. The Maintenance Supervisor stated it would be approximately 60-80 foot
in length and 18 feet deep, so cost would be close to $1,000. After further discussion,
it was noted the drainage issue will be corrected in the future as there will not be
enough time to fix it before the car show due to the amounts of rain in the last few
days.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated the city park will be mowed and some clean
gravel put in some areas that are needed. It was noted that 3 loads of clean gravel
were put in all areas of the park last year as well as trees as having the trees
trimmed. The Maintenance Supervisor stated the bathrooms have also been painted
and has been putting some paper goods in the bathrooms to see if we have any
issues like we have in the past and so far, it has been fine.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated the sign providing history on the Bailey Cabin
has been reinstalled so that people coming through Lyndon can get information
about it. Mayor Morrison stated the cabin will also be open during the car show.

Mayor Morrison asked about the playground equipment at Jones Park and the
Maintenance Supervisor stated the materials have come in and his department is
working on removing the swing set. It was noted the that swing set has a significant
amount of concrete on the legs which has made it harder to remove and is not sure
that the merry-go-round will not have the same issue.

Atchison asked if the contract mower is being contacted and what height does the
grass have to be to have it mowed. The City Clerk stated he has been mowing some



Regular Council Minutes of June 7, 2021
Page 6

properties and that Chief Forkenbrock regulates when things are to be mowed.
Atchison stated that 8 and Jefferson is in need of mowing. Resident Brett Lewis
stated that 219 W 8t needs mowed also.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated he met with Charlie Schwindamann with KRWA
in regards to lagoon operations and how low the city is able to drop the water level
in the lagoons when discharged. Currently the city discharges the lagoon once a
quarter, however, there has never been real clear direction what the normal level
should be after discharging. The Maintenance Supervisor stated cell 3 of the lagoons
should not drop below 5 feet which is not clarified in the wastewater permit.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated there is still a problem with infiltration into the
sewer system which became apparent after the last large rain event. These could be
caused due to residential sump pumps, failing private lines or things that should not
be tied into the system. Smoke testing may need to be done to see the problem areas
which has not been done in approximately 3-4 years.

The City Clerk stated that a few years ago she and then Maintenance Supervisor
David Wilson had obtained information from the City of Hiawatha in regards to an
inflow and infiltration program to reduce the amount of water infiltrating the sewer
system. Mayor Morrison asked the City Clerk add this program to the next meeting
agenda and to provide the Council the information that was obtained.

c) POLICE: Council received a copy of the officer activity report from May 17 to June
7,2021.

Atchison asked Chief Forkenbrock about installation of the long gun mounts. The
Chief stated the mount installation on his patrol car would be done Saturday and
will be dropping his car off on Friday evening. The part-time car will be taken to
Terry’s Service tomorrow for installation and should be done on Wednesday.

Atchison stated the police department now has one new and one refurbished radar.
Chief Forkenbrock stated he had spoken to Bob Hamilton about the refurbished one
and about the calibration and accuracy of the radars as well as being able to continue
to write citations.

8. COUNCIL/MAYOR COMMENTS AND REPORTS:

Mayor Morrison thanked city staff for their continued work on the many projects as well as
the governing body for their support to department heads.

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

8:59 p.m. Heit made the motion to recess to executive session for 15 minutes for Non-Elected
Personnel. Shepard seconded; motion carried.

9:14 p.m. Council reconvened with Atchison making the motion to promote Grady Smith to
Headguard with the pay rate of $7.50 per hour. Heit seconded; motion carried.



Regular Council Minutes of June 7, 2021
Page 7

Council also directed the Maintenance Supervisor to schedule interviews for the full-time
maintenance position on Monday, June 14 at 7:00 p.m. with the current applicants.

10. ADJOURNMENT: Schmitt made the motion to adjourn to Monday, June 21, 2021 at 7:00
p.m. for regular meeting. Heit seconded; motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Julie Stu%‘z an
City Clerk

Approved by the governing body oné‘l,uo/ 2-0 ZDZJ

Attest:
Julie Stutzmén, CMC 5 :_"
City Clerk
Wik,
\\\\“\‘C) L I"ﬁ,
S'\\{C{.-""""")-//l/é"'a
SO~ Kok
57 mes n7Z3
Sk SE L
tTL VDAL £
"/, 4 -------- N
“ f,G & CO \I\E‘\\‘\\
LTI



